
 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION                                          CITY MANAGER  
Demery Bishop                                        Shawn Gillen 
Ron Bossick 
Marianne Bramble COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
Tina Gann                  George Shaw  
Charles Matlock          
David McNaughton                                       CITY ATTORNEY  
Alan Robertson                                       Edward M. Hughes
                                               
                                                                        

Planning Commission Meeting 
AGENDA 

March 11, 2019 – 7:00 p.m. 
For City Council Meeting April 11,, 2019 – 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
A. Call to order: 
 
B. Consideration of Minutes: 
 1. Minutes of February 11, 2019 
 
C. Disclosures/Recusals: 
 
D. Old Business: 
   
E. New Business:  
 1. Text Amendment: Sec. 5-090. Variances. (B) Height – text addition/change. 
  
F. Discussion and Presentation: 
 1. Carrying Capacity Study Implementation Coastal Incentive Grant – Goodwyn Mills Cawood     
     Ecological Planning Group – Courtney Reich 
 
 2. Sec. 4-050 -Zoning districts (G) changes to the NM district to potentially limit uses. 
 
 3. Sec. 3-090 –Schedule of development regulations (A) (1) Interpretation of the 200’ rule. 
 
 
Adjournment: 
  

      Lisa L. Schaaf 
 
 
 
 
 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are 
required to contact Jan LeViner at 912.472.5080 promptly to allow the City to make reasonable accommodations 
for those persons.   



 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION                                          CITY MANAGER  
Demery Bishop                                        Shawn Gillen 
Ron Bossick 
Marianne Bramble COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
Tina Gann                  George Shaw  
Charles Matlock          
David McNaughton                                       CITY ATTORNEY  
Alan Robertson                                       Edward M. Hughes
                                               
                                                                        

 
 

Planning Commission Meeting 
MINUTES 

February 11, 2019 
 

 
Ron Bossick called the February 11, 2019, Tybee Island Planning Commission meeting to order. 
Commissioners present were Alan Robertson, David McNaughton, Tina Gann, Ron Bossick, Marianne 
Bramble, and Charles Matlock. Demery Bishop was not present. 
 
Planning Commission Oath administered by Mayor Jason Buelterman  
(2-year terms end January 31, 2021): 
Ron Bossick stated the first order of business would be the installation of our newly appointed members, 
which are Alan Robertson, David McNaughton and Charles Matlock. He asked Mayor Buelterman to come 
up and administer the oath to the new members. Mayor Jason Buelterman approached the Planning 
Commission and asked the newly appointed members to stand and raise their right hand and repeat after him 
the oath. Mayor Jason Buelterman then thanked the new members and stated how important their work is to 
this community.  
 
Elections: 
Ron Bossick asked if there were any nominations for Chair and Vice Chair of the Planning Commission. Alan 
Robertson made a motion to nominate Demery Bishop for Chair and Ron Bossick for Vice Chair. Marianne 
Bramble seconded. The vote to approve was unanimous.  
 
Consideration of Minutes: 
Vice Chair Ron Bossick asked for consideration of the January 14, 2019 meeting minutes. Alan Robertson 
made a motion to approve. Marianne Bramble seconded. The vote to approve was unanimous. 
   
Disclosures/Recusals: 
Vice Chair Ron Bossick asked if there were any disclosures or recusals. There were none. 
 
Old Business: 
Vice Chair Ron Bossick asked if there was any old business. Alan Robertson asked what the status of the 
Casino Boat is. Mr. Shaw stated the owner said he did not intend to reapply with Tybee.  
Alan Robertson also stated the experience with the boat suggest the need for some sort of limitation of what 
could be placed at that dock in the future. In addition, the area needs to look at some of the issues that came up 
and address then. He also stated that any other business even if it is small could create problems. Mr. Shaw 
stated to the best of his knowledge none of the water-based businesses have ever been asked to do a site plan. 
The land-based businesses have. In addition, yes this did bring up that we have a lot of overlap in that area. 
Mr. Shaw stated yes we could certainly look into those issues.  



 

 

 
        
New Business:  
Variance: requesting to impact marshland to maintain right of way–Polk Street right of way & 318 Polk 
Street–City of Tybee & Michael Leonard –Zone C2-EC-4-0025-01-005Y & 005Z. 
Mr. Shaw approached the Planning Commission and stated that this property has been on the agenda a few 
times. The City is seeking to maintain the City’s right-of-way in conjunction of working with Mr. Leonard so 
he can maintain his driveway. He stated we need to give ourselves the variance and then apply with the State. 
The reason we are reapplying for the variance again is that we have not received the permit before the variance 
expires. Mr. Alton Brown with Resource and Land consultants working as the agent on behalf of the City of 
Tybee Island approached the Planning Commission and stated the Corp of Engineers permit has been obtained 
for the road improvements and maintenance. We have also applied to the DNR for a coastal marshlands permit. 
He also stated because of the two recent hurricanes and a variety of other things the project review by Coastal 
Resources Division has been delayed. Now we are back on track with the review and need to renew the 
variance. The DNR line has been surveyed again and will be updated. The scope of the project will stay the 
same. Alan Robertson asked how long will this construction take. Mr. Brown stated that the Corp of 
Engineers permit is valid until 2022 and the Coastal marshlands permit will be valid for five years from the 
day that it is issued. Alan Robertson made a motion to approve. Marianne Bramble seconded. The vote to 
approve was unanimous.  
 
Discussion and Presentation: 
Carrying Capacity Study Implementation Coastal Incentive Grant – Goodwyn Mills Cawood     
Ecological Planning Group – Courtney Reich 
Mr. Shaw approached the planning commission and stated Ms. Reich did not show tonight so he would try to 
share what he knows about the grant. He stated the coastal incentive grant had three goals or outputs. One a 
water and sewer rate setting which has been done and will be looked at. Two would be potential code changes 
to reduce density due to water and sewer issues and another to reduce impacts in areas that flood. The one 
point Courtney wants to point out is whether we want to make some changes to the code to reduce the potential 
density with an example being how a variety of lots that could become two lots. Also changing the 65 percent 
buffer greenspace. With the amount of rentals on the Island, there is a big demand to fill every buildable space 
on lots. In addition, the pool market has expanded from the rental market and those take up the greenspace. 
Mr. Shaw stated those are some of the issues I know Ms. Reich wanted to bring up. Vice Chair Ron Bossick 
stated he would like to ask Courtney Reich to come back to Planning Commission at the next meeting so they 
can ask the questions they have. Alan Robertson stated that our March meeting would be a good time for 
Courtney Reich to come since she will have went to City Council February 28, 2019, that will give us input 
from City Council.  
 
 
Adjournment: Tina Gann made a motion to adjourn. Marianne Bramble seconded. Meeting adjourned at 
7:30pm. 
 
 
 
Lisa L. Schaaf 



Sec. 5-090. - Variances. 
 

(A) Standards. After an application has been submitted to the designated city official, reviewed by 
the planning commission, and a public hearing has been held by the mayor and council, the 
mayor and council may grant a variance from the strict application of the provisions in this Land 
Development Code only if a physical circumstance, condition, or consideration exists as 
described in subsection (1). 
(1) There are unique physical circumstances or conditions or considerations beyond that of 
surrounding properties, including a substandard lot of record that existed prior to March 24, 1971 
(see section 3-040); irregularity; narrowness; or shallowness of the lot shape; or exceptional 
topographical or other physical circumstances, conditions, or considerations related to the 
environment, or to safety, or to historical significance, that is peculiar to the particular property; 
and; 
(2) Because of such physical circumstances or conditions or considerations, the property cannot 
be developed in strict conformity with the provisions of this Land Development Code, without 
undue hardship to the property. 
(3) A nonconforming use or structure does not constitute a unique physical circumstance, 
condition, or consideration. 
 
(B) Height. No part of any structure shall project beyond 35-feet above the average adjacent 
grade of a property except: 
(1) Chimneys, flues, stacks, heating units, ventilation ducts, air conditioning units, gas holders, 
elevators, solar panels and similar appurtenances needed to operate and maintain the building 
on which they are located. Those items specifically excluded from consideration as described in 
Section 2-010 Terms and Definitions: Height of building. 
(2) The following items that were existing on the date of the adoption of this ordinance: flag poles, 
television aerials, water towers and tanks, steeples and bell towers, broadcasting and relay 
towers, transmission line towers, and electric substation structures. 
 
(C) Variance longevity. After a variance has been granted by the mayor and council it shall be 
valid for a period of 12 months from date of approval. Such approval is based on information 
provided in the application. Building permits may only be granted for plans consistent with the 
approved application. Any deviation from the information submitted will require separate approval 
by the mayor and council. 
 
(D) Reviewing variance applications. The designated city official, planning commission, and 
governing body, shall consider the factors stated herein in reviewing variance applications in 
taking action on a particular variance. In exercising the powers to grant variances, the mayor and 
council may attach any conditions to its approval which it finds necessary to accomplish the 
reasonable application of the requirements of these regulations. 
 
(E) Application approval. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Code of Ordinances, the 
designated city official may approve applications for variances without the need of public 
hearings and without the need of review by the planning commission or the mayor and council as 
follows: 
(1) When either of the following circumstances exists: 
a. The proposed improvement or alteration will not result in an expansion of the existing footprint 
of the existing structure; or 



b. No additional encroachment into any setback shall be created by the proposed improvement, 
construction or addition. 
(2) When each of the following circumstances also exists: 
a. No encroachment or construction of habitable space or other prohibited improvements will 
exist below one foot above the base flood elevation; and 
b. The requested improvements or construction will not violate existing zoning provisions. 

This subsection shall have specific application to existing nonconforming 
structures as referred to in section 3-020. 

(F) Compliance with ordinances. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Code of Ordinances, 
no application for a variance may be accepted nor may any variance be granted with respect to 
any property that is then not in compliance with the requirements of ordinances for the condition 
on which the variance is sought, unless the applicant files with the application a detailed written 
explanation of how, when, and by whom the need for a variance was created. In such a case, the 
planning commission shall make a recommendation to the mayor and council as to whether the 
variance should be approved or rejected or modified and the mayor and council, following a 
public hearing, may approve, reject or modify the variance request. In the event property is 
constructed in violation of the ordinances, the violation status remains until such time as the 
condition is rectified and placed in conformity with the ordinances. Violations of the ordinances 
may be subject to the enforcement provisions of this Code and all penalties permissible by law. A 
variance that is granted under this section does not excuse prior violations including those that 
have resulted or may result in enforcement action by the city. 
(Ord. No. 1999-27, 8-12-1999; Ord. No. 2002-08, 5-9-2002; Ord. No. 2002-08 Variances, 
amended 8-29-2002; Ord. of 8-11-2005; Ord. No. 14-2010, 8-26-2010;Ord. No. 57-A-2014, § 1, 
12-11-2014 ) 

 
































































